— o —— - —— O i TS

i Sl NG B 4N
' ol 'J:f‘dhn:ﬁ!&lmﬂ'*.

: .
'l}",.}

N 4

YL T

b o T T ———— R

(/52)




X O Vol. 51

9 Congress of the nited States §

Report of Proceedings

Hearing held before

Joint Committee
on the
Investigation of the Pearl Harbor Attack
s S. Con. Res. 27

February 1, 1946

Washington, D. C.

- . .

WARD & PAUL

4266 (ELECTREPORTER, INC.)

NATIONAL 14267 OFFICIAL REPORTERS
1760 PENNSYLVANIA AVE., N. W,
WASHINGTON 6, D. C.

- - L . 3 i a = |- - - 3 ey - e - " -
R . TR B T e, W A L Ay R R e W e o R i T e e T W Nt ey i Tt W S S W " - T — F o= e decamsntd B et - i il & - & = R— JE——




D G "NOLONIMEV TINY4L » GMYM

10

i1

13

13

14

18

17

19

20

21

23

24

23

CONTENTS

TESTIMONY OF:
SMITH, Vice Admiral William Ward (Resumed)

SAFFORD, Captain Laurance Fry
United States Navy

PAGE
9475




R ™

QUTH

S, Con. Res. 27

Friday, February 1, 1946
Congress of the United States,
Joint Committee on the Investigation
of Pearl Harbor Attack,
Washington, D: C.
The Joint Committee met, pursuant to adjournment, at
10:00 a.m., in the Caucus Room (room 318), Senate Office
Building, Senator Alben W. Barkley (chairman) presiding.
Present: Senators Barkley (chairman), George, Lucas,
Ferguson and Brewster.

Representatives Cooper (vice chairman), Clark, Murphy,

D ‘A "NOLDNIHAYM "INVd ¥ GQMYM

Gearhart and Keefe.
Also present: Seth W. Richardson, General Counsel;
Samuel H. Kaufman, Associate General Counsel, and John E.

Masten, of counsel, for the Joint Commlttee.
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The Chairman: The commlittee will be in order.

When the examination of Adwmiral Smith was suspended

the other day, Mr. Murphy was in the process of examining,

SO0 you may proceed.
TESTIMONY OF VICE ADMIRAL WILLIAM WARD SMITH,
UNITED STATES NAVY -
| (Resumed )
Admiral Smith: Mr. Chairman, wmay I make a brief state-
ment, sir?
The Chairman: Yes.

Admiral Smith: In connection with the length of the

meeting between Admiral Kimmel and Captaln Zacharias, when
‘ I last took the stand the Chairman remarked on the fact that
Admiral Kimmel had agreed that the meetling was an hour and

a half long, and I had said 15 winutes. I have searched

the record of Admiral Kimmel's testimony, and I cannot find

|

that anywhere he mentioned any tiume.

However, sometime prior to his testimony, in the presence
of two or more members of his staff, the legal staff, he
told me that the meeting was, as he placed it, not wore tﬁﬁn
30 minutegL

The Chairman: I was speaking from wemory when I was

quoting hiwm.,

Admiral Smith: Yes. T would like to make a brief -




Witness Smith

statement of fact to the committee in connection with the

berthing system at Pearl Harbor. I belleve this 1s pertinent

to the testimony of two witnesses whom I have heard, and

possibly to that of more whom I did not hear.
" General Marshall, when asked how long it would take
for the Fleet to sortie from Pearl Harbor, qualified his

answer by stating it depended on whether the ships were headed

in or out. Captain McCollum, in his testimony --
Mr. Keefe: (Interposingb May I inquire, you sald
General Marshall? Did I understand you correctly?
Adwiral Smith: Yes, sir, General Marshall. He was
asked the question: Had the message gone through how long

would it take the Fleet to go out? Captain McCollum, in

D Q "NOLDNIHBYM "INYd ¥ QHYM

discussing what is now called the bomb plot message, where
Pearl Harbor is divided into five sectlons, flve areas,
said possibly because in some of those areas ahips wvere
headed in while in others they were headed out.

Now anywhere in Pearl Harbor, to turn a big ship,
battleship or carrier, results in a temporary blocking of

the passage. For that reason, and to facllitate very

quick sortie, either day or night, all big ships throughout
the period of Admiral Kimmel's command, all big ships, on

entering Pearl Harbor, were turned around and pointed out

before they were moored. That reduced the tugboat operations

o
]
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Witness Smith

in getting them clear. All other ships, crusiers and
destroyers, were nested between buoys and they were enabled
to get out without the use of tugs, and as all ships could
pass on either side of Ford Island there was no difficulty
on the part of the 1light forces in getting clear when the
battleships were leaving their moorings.

Like Captain McCollum, I was once a Fleet Operatlons
Officer and I know that when the Fleet went to Pearl Harbor
once per year, or once in two years, 1t was a staff study
proposition to get the Fleet into Pearl Harbor and practically
an all-day job to get them out.

We had been working in 1941 in and out of Pearl Harﬁor
so much that we oouid clear the entire Fleet in about three
hours. The only limit to getting them out was the fact
that they had to go in single file through the channel entrance,
and that the speed was limited to 12 knots. Beyond that,
in shallow water, the light forces pulled such a wave that
they would have wrecked everything on the beach on both
sides.

But there was never any difficulty in sortieing and,

as I said, the big ships were alwvays headed out.
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The Chairman: Go ahead, Congressman Murphy.

Mr. Murphy: Admiral Smith, you testified, did you not,
before.Adm1£51 Hart?

Admiral Smith: 'fea, sir.

Mr. Murphy: I direct your attentlon to page 38 of the
testimony, ;our testimony before Admiral Hart. At that
time you were asked this question:

"what was the result in your opinion, of these person-
nel and materiel shortages On the training program, the
efficiency of the training program of the Fleet?

"snswer. I think it did not lower the efficiency
of the Pacific Fleet, As a matter of fact the complements
had just been revised, and I have always felt that they
vere unnecessarily large. The Fleet wvas adequately manned,
and I consider the ships very efficlency, and the effi-

ciency of the Fleet was not harmed by this, but the Com-

‘mender in Chief was looking into the future when he would

have to send these men home for new construction.”

Were you asked that question, and did you make that
answver?

Agmiral Smith: That is correct. If I may do 80,
T would like to modify it slightly.

I will say that I went into the Hart Board absolutely

cold. In the year immediately followlng Pearl Harbor, I
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr., Murphy

was at sea practically all the time, with six different J|
flagships from the Coral 3ea through Midway, and six ‘
months in the Aleutlans.

At the time I was called before the Hart Board I
had a busy wartime job, and since I never kept a dilary,
I had no papers to refresh my memory. I believe my testl-

mony, now that I have had a chance to think about it, 1s

probably better than it was then -- on the other hand, 1t ? l
may be worse., In elther case, I stand responsible for my ;
testimony.

As to the efficiency of the Fleet, I did believe that
the complements as revised were larger than necessary at
that time because we had not received the additional antl- f
aircraft guns and radar and many things that we needed.

The Fleet was in a very efficient conditlon. We had
the highest type of men I have ever seen in this Navy at
that time. Thoey learned quickly.

I believe what is meant in men belng demanded more and
more, it required more constant training; whereas 1f you 1
hed & crew that is well experienced, every man Knows his
station, end knows what to do, you do not require thils
sconstant day and night training that you have to have.

Very few officers had ever seen one of these permanent

Crevs.
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h3 7 Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy
o I had one on one occasion for two years, which makes

3 all the difference in the world. We did not have 1t
4 then. But the efficiency of the Fleet was not impaired by

5 the turnover, in my opinlion.

Larry 8 ~ Mr. Murphy: You were also asked this question:
= 7 "Q Did that condition ever develop prior to the
8 7th of December whereby the Fleet was reduced due to
o transfers to new construction?
10 J No, it did not; not below the level necessary."
11 | And again, question 47:
12 "Q Did any of these matters affect the maintenance

13 of the Fleet and the efficient condition of maintenance
14 of materiel?

15 "A No. Units of the Fleet were sent to the Coast

D .0 MNOCTOMIHEAW . JUAT 4 ORAW

168 shortly before Admiral Kimmel assumed his duties of

17 Commander in Chief for degaussing and the installation

18 of armor -- what do you call it, splinter armor around

10 the decks and anti-aircraft guns. We had a plan mapped
20 out approximately a year in advance for the overhsul of
21 ships wvhen they needed docking and repairs, and that was

' 22 continued and was in effect when the attack was made on
23 Pearl Harbor. The materiel condition of the Fleet was
24 all right, It was satisfactory to the Commander in

os || Chief."
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

And again, question 50:

"Q Did these conditions such as 1§u have outlined
have any adverse effect on the morale and health of the
personnel of the Fleet?

"A As far as morale and health of the personnel
of the Fleet is concerned, remember that the Fleet went
out there in April of 1940, with the idea of carrying
on‘a six-weeks Fleet prdﬁlam, and was held out there
indefinitely."

There is considerable more in that paragraph, but I
just read that part. .

Now, question 5l1:

"0, Did the fact that the Fleetwas based at Pearl
Harbor rather than on the mainland, affect the material
conditions and the materiel readiness of the fleet?

A&  'No, it 414 not."

And Question 52:

"Q@ For war?

"A No, it did not. I might add to that last state-
ment that he often discussed the question of the condition

of the Fleet and we felt that it was better out there than

vhen it had been based on San Pedro, and I remember the
Commander in Chief making the statement that we had been

wvrong by basing our ships at San Pedro and going out for
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

the day, and shooting, that he found the best thing was
for them to take them out for a week and keep them going
day and night."

You were asked that question, and you made that
answver?

Admiral Smithx- That is correct. I belleve what
Admiral Kimmel actually said was if the fleet were to
return to the Coast, he would not keep them in San Pedro
where they anchored off San Clemintine every night, and
came in every Friday, he would keep them going day and
night for a week.

Mr. Murphy: Well, did you make that statement at
any rate, "when it had been based on San Pedro, and I
remember the Commander in Chief makkng the statement that
we had been wrong by basing our ships at San Pedro and going
out for the day and shooting, that he found the best thing
was for them to take them out for a week and keep them
going day and night"?

Admiral Smith: That is correct.

Mr., Murphy: Now, question 53:

"Q Within your knowledge, did Kimmel ever make
any definite recommendations that the custom of basing the

Fleet at Pearl Harbor should be changed -- during 1941,

I am speaking of -- and returning to the old way of basing
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

on the California coast?

"A To my absolute knowledge, he never made such
a recommendation by letter or dispatch. In July, I
think, 1941, he made a trip to Washington. He was accom-
penied only by Captain McMorris. If he ever made any
such recommendation, it might have been done at that time,
but I think I should have heard about it. I never heard
him say to me or any member of his .nta.fr that the Fleet
should return to the Coast, although he knew that his
predecessor had recommended it."

Then again, question 55:

"Q Then, I understand you to mean that, in your
opinion, the general war-mindedness of the personnel of
the Fleet was improved by its retention in Hawall?

"A Yes, sir, I think it was. You see, in the early
part of our stay out there, the entire fleet was anchored
at Lahaina Roads, with all lights on. I think the Fleet
did get wer-minded, because they began moving into Pearl
Harbor, and even moved the carriers in -- moved everything
in, and, of course, invariably operated without lights.”

Admiral, yesterday, in questioning Admiral Beil:l.nger
-- you were here, wvere you?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, I was.

Mr. Murphy: I recalled that when Admiral Kimmel was




Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy
on the stand, he said that he did not take the air matters
up with Admiral Bellinger, that he took them upwvith his
own air man, Admiral Davis. I read from toat}!.mony yester-
day to the effect that .AdmirnlIDavia said he apparently
was not consulted except as to logistics.

Do you know who was consulted in the air matters, if
it wasn't Admiral Davis, or Admiral Bellinger?

Admiral Smith: I think I cen make a good effort to

explain that if I may have the time to do it, sir.

Davis was the Fleet Aviation Officer. Dispatches
- such as the war warning, which Davis states he did not get,
™ passed first, of course, through the Communications Officer.
> The Communications Officer or the Communications Secur-
5 ity Officer, checked on each message the officers to whom

3 U "NOLDNIMEYM "INVYd ¥ QNYM

i it should be shown. These messages were carried about by
- a junior officer of the Communications Department, and

i shown to the officers whose names had been checked.

N A copy of the message was mver left with the officer,
- éven with the Commander in Chief. As the Commander in Chief
oy read the secret dispatch, the officer waited outside and
21

took custody of 1it.

22
Now, Davis and I lived within a few blocks of each
23
other in Honolulu., We almost Invarlably drove to and from
24

Pearl Harbor together. That gave us a half hour going and
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy
a half hour returning each day. We talked a great deal
of shop and did a great deal of business on those trips.

For example, on the evening of the 27th of November,
1941, Davis drove his car, a roadster, and had great
difficulty in getting to Honolulu because of the caravans
of trucks and troops. I do not know what we talked about
that afternoon, but I think it very probable that we
talked about the war warning.

Davis was a very good friend of mine anil had no
secrets from him on anything that happened. I think it
might be well to read the duties of the Fleet Aviation
Officer as written in Staff Instructions, signed by me,
and approved by Admirel Kimmel on 14 July, 1941:

"Fleet Aviation Officer --

"(a) advises with reference to:

"(1) all aircraft operations and aviation matters
including those pertaining to policy with respect
to:

"(An) materiel; (B) personnel; (C) gunnery and
bombing; (D) radio.

"(2) aircraft operations and aviation shore
facllities.

"(3) coordination of aviation activities of the

Fleet.
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

"(4) employment of aircraft in tactical exer-
cises; analyses and reports thereon. _
"(5) by the development of aircraft tactics,
gunnery, and doctrine.
"(6) Naval air operating policy.
"(b) assists War Plans Officer in the preparation of
var plans,
"(c) keeps informed as to the effectiveness of aircraft
units of the Fleet.
"(d) assists Operations Officer in the preparation
of fleet schedules dealing with aireraft and aircraft
services.
"(e) consults gunnery officer in connection with air-
craft and anti-aircraft gunnery., --"
Mr, Murphy: Admiral, I have no objection to your
reading that, but will it in any way clear the fact that
the air man was not consulted about these matters, and
was not shown the war warning and the other messages?
Admiral Smith: I am merely trying to confirm an impres-
sion that I have that he was consulted. Now, I don't
know what was shown to him, but his desk was almost adjoining
that of the Operations Officer --

Mr, Murphy: Are you going to show us by way of con-

trediction of his sworn testimony something in the Staff

e e e




Witness Smith - Questions by: Mr. Murphy
regulations to the effect that he should have been shown
them but was not shown them?

Admiral Smith: No, sir. I am telling you that he
was an excellent Fleet Aviation Officer and these were
some of the reasons why he had to keep in close touch, -

and he did,
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

Mr. Murphy: He was an excellent Fleet Aviation officer.

2
Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.
S | -
Mr. Murphy: And you had the number two aviatlion man
4 | .
«t Pearl Harbor, you had some of the best air brains there,
5 \
and they both say they weren't consulted.
8
Admiral Smith: We had another air man at Pearl Harbor.
7
Mr. Murphy: Was he the man consulted?
8
Admiral Smith: Davis was consulted by the Commander
t)
in Chief.
s 10
z i Mr. Murphy: You heard me read yesterday testimony
». 33
E r vhere he said he wasn't?
rf 12
2 Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.
2 13 .
o Mr. Murphy: Now, you say there was another air man
g 14
o there?
"3
Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.
16
Mr. Murphy: Who was that?
17
Admiral Smith: Admiral Halsey was the number one
18 -
air man in the whole area. He had more planes than all of
19
| them.
20 |
| Mr. Murphy: Admiral Halsey was a busy man, was he not?
a1
l Admiral Smith: When Halsey came into port the first
23 |
thing he did was to come over to see the Commender in Chief.
23
Mr. Murphy: When did Halsey leave port, Admiral, before
24
| December T?
=
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

Admiral Smith: He left on the 28th.

Mr. Murphy: The 28th. And the message came in on the
27th, didn't 1t?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: So that he was gone from then until after
December 7?2

Admiral Smith: That is correct.

Mr. Murphy: So surely he wasn’t consulted, in his
absence?

Admiral Smith: No, sir, but he was present, he saw the

27th message.

Mr. Murphy: He saw the 27th message and went out with
orders to shoot down every plane seen and to sink every
submarine in the ocean, every submarine sighted; is that not

. correct?

Admiral Smith: That is what I understand him to say;

il

1)
| that was not his orders but I understand that 1s what he says.

Mr. Murphy: That is what he did with his ships, vasnit 1t?

f Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.
i Mr. Murphy: Now, as I understand it, on the night of
l the 27th you were going over to the City of Honolulu in your
car --
Admiral Smith: No, Captain Davis? car. He was driving.
|
fi

Mr. Murphy: Yes. And the Army hed some men out and

f
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

dome materiel out, tﬂe'words'were blocked?

Admiral'Smith; Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: So that every civilian could at least see
that the roads were blocked with the Army going on ﬁn alert?

Admiral 3mith: That 1is correct.

Mr. Murphy: There is no doubt in your mind that anyone
who had eyes could see that the Army was making some special
move?

Admiral Smith: Not only then but after thet they were
at the bridg;a along the highways; they were very much 1in
avidence.

Mr. Murphy: Different than they had been before November

rn
=3
9

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Now, I direct your attention, Admiral, to

question 106:

"Q. What about the carriers?
"A. We had no knowledge of those; no. The Fleet
Intelligence Officer said that he did not know where they were."
That was your impression?
Admiral Smith: That was my impression at that time.
I am iaformed now that I was in error. The only one that

I recalled was the report of two carriers in the Marshalls

sometime previously.
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

Mr. Murphy: I direct your attention to question 87:

"Q2: Do you recall the Fleet Aviation Officer having
given any opinions or advice on the matter?

"A. No, sir; I do not recall that he ever did."

That was Admiral Davis, wasn",t it?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Question 85:

"Q. You also knew that as against a Japanese carrier
raid, the Army radar could not be depended upon to give
warning?

"A? Yes, sir. "

That was your testimony, was it not?

Admiral Smith: That is correct.

Mr. Murphy: Now, Admiral Kimmel says that, he expected
& warning, was qulte sure he was going to get a wvarning
of 100 miles. How would you account for that difference of
opinion on a vital subject if this had been discussed at
& conference?

Admiral Smith: I believe it has been thoroughly
covered that the radar had been working and had been working
in exercises with theFleet very shortly previous to Pearl
Harbor but the system was not complete. The Information
Center, as I understand it, was not working. As the radar

works today there would have been in cne room & representative
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

from each command.

Mr. Murphy: Admiral, I would like to talk about
December 7 and prior thereto. As I understand it, you say
that you knew you would not get a warning. Admiral Kimmel
"elt that he would get a warning. Now, 1f there was a.
conference, how do you account for that disparity, you feel-
ing you were not going to get a warning and the Commander
in Chief saying he expected and was assured at one time of
200miles and later correct it 100 miles, that he was depend-
ing on Army radar for a warning and you, as Chief of Staff,
say you knew there wasn't going to be any.

Admiral Smith: I did.

Mr. Murphy: Question 85:

"Q. You also knew that as against a Japanese carrier
raid, the Army radar could not be depended on the give
varning?

"Ae Yes; aip."

Admiral Smith: That 1s correct.

Mr. biurphy: Question 86:;

"Q. Then, if you realized the danger of auoh.anfair
raid, which events proved was not only possible but probable,

you would have seen that outside of anti-aircraft gunfire,

there was no security to our installations in Pearl Harbor,

including the Fleet, -- is that right?




%
>
2
%)
»
1
>
-
r
:
2
z
0
-
%
£
o
n

Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

"A. Yes, sir."

Now, Admiral, I would like to ask you a question or
twvo about your feeling about the competency of the Army
flyers. Did you have an opinion on that matter? And
particularly I would like to read to you question 81:

"Q. What do you know about their combat efficiency,
particularly as regards personnel. |

"A. Well, we didn't have a very high regard for 1it.
That was based upon our observations during Fleet operations,
when their Flying Fortresses would come over at almost
smokestack level and showed an utter disregard for possible
anti-aircraft fire. In the operatiions between our planes
and theirs, our aviators, possibly prejudiced, expressed
the opinion that they were not very good?"

Question 82:

"Qo Now, you are talking about the Army bombers,
or the Army pursuits?

"A. Both."

Was that the feeling of the Navy at that time, Admiral,
in regard to the flyers?

Admiral Smith: I do not know what the feeling of

the Navy was. That was probably an unfortunate statement

of mine. I believe that I gathered most of that information

from my conversations to and from Pearl Harbor wlth the Fleet
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aviator.
Mr. Murphy: Admiral, I might say you are justiried

in that --

Admiral Smith: I might also say probably he got his
reports from young aviators, who were rivals, and who were
pre judiced.

Mr. Murphy: At any rate you stated that?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Mr. Murphy: Question 84:

&3 "Q. Do you say that because of the doubt you had of

7 the efficiency of Army aircraft?

- "A. That is part of it, yes, sir. I may be unjust

ia to the Army in that. 1t may have been prejudice on the

3
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= part of Navy flyers, but the opinions expressed by our

e aviators, as I saw, vere not very complimentary to the Army

1
- flyers.

8 You were asked question 90:

o "Q. Do you recall whether the tasks assigned the

26 United States Pacific Fleet were offensive or defensive,

24 in their nature?

o "A. My recollection is -- they were defensive.”

23 You were in error a little in part there?

24 Admiral Smith: Yes, sir. As I say, I went into that

! eold, and I believe they told me to refresh my memory on that.
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Mr. Murphy: There is one other thing I would like to
aak. you in conclusion. When you were before the Navy Soard
you made a statement from which I get the impression that
the feeling you and the entire staff had was that the Fleet
had a job to do, to carry out a certain defensive operation,
and that it was not a part of the Fleet'!s duty to be de-
fending Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Smith: That is correct.

Mr. Murphy: And is it a fair a.aaumption that the fact
that the Fleet did have this off'ensive problem ahead of
them, that having concentrated so ruch on the anxiety to
be ready for the offensive, they overlooked the duty fhey

had by command from the Chief of Naval Operations to help
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and aid the Army in the defense of Fearl Harbor because of
the deficiency of the local forces in materiel?
Admiral Smith: I would not say that they overlooked

anything. The matter of an air attack on the Fleet, elither

at its base or at sea, was freguently the subject of dis-
cussion in the staff and with the Commander in Chief.

Shefner
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Shefner
fls La |l witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy
Char 1

2 I 4o not recall at which conferences these dlscussicns

3 were held but they were so frequent that I would say we 4did
4 not overlook the possibility. We d4id not expeot the attack.
[ Mr. Murphy: Well, I do not mean overlook in the sense
8 of entirely ignoring, but the faot 18 you were so offenslve
7 minded that you stressed offense to the detriment, perhaps,

8 of a 1ittle bit of defense in order to protect the base 1t-

] self.
s 10 Admiral Smith: Well, I belleve that is for ycu gentle-
E t men to deocide.
.§ 1‘3 Mr. Murphy: All right.
é 13 Admiral Smith: I did not think so at the time.
§ 14 | Mr. Murphy: Well, I have no other questions. I am
: (3 awfully sorry, Admirul, to have kept you walting.
16 l The Vice Chairman: Are ycu throught
i | Mr. Murphy: Yes, sir.
18 The Vice Chalirman: Senator Brewster? Not present, Mr,
19 Gearhart! You passed, I belleve, once, didn't you?
20 ‘ Mr. Gearhart: I did once but I would like to ask a

g1 question or two now, if I may.

23 The Vice Chairman: You told the cecmmittee that you diad
23 pass, as I recall: 1t,

24 Mr, Gearhart: I think nearly all of us 4id.

23 I' The Vice Chalrman: I think all of us 4id down to, - as

I
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Witness Smith : Questions by: Mr., Gearhart

I remember, Mr. Murphy was examining Admirul at his last ap-
pearance, and I was thinking no one passed except possilbly
Mr, Keefe and Senator Ferguson, If there is no objection from
the committee I think you can go ahead,
| Mr, Murphy: I think the facts are the “dmirsl had been
ta ken around down the line and when he was about to be ex-
| oused I asked permission of the committee to ask him a few
questions,
The Vice Chairman: All right.

Mr, Gearhart: I think everybody has passed.

The Vice Chairman: All right, you are probably ocorrect.

 ——

Mr, Gearhart of California will inquire, Admiral,

My, Gearhart: Admiral, were you with the Pacifilc Fleet

during the days when Admiral Richardson was the Commander-in-
Chief'?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, From June 1939 -~ well, I was

in the Fleet when Admiral Richardson took over in 1940, I

|
‘Jolned the Fleet in 1939 with the command of the oruiser Brook-
e

Mr, Gearhart: Wpen did you become a member of “dmiral

Richardson's staff, if you ever d4idr?
Admiral Smith: I ne ver did. I was present at a confer=-

ance between Admirsl Richardson and Admir:l Kimmel on Admiral
i‘iohardaon*s flagship about wid January prior to the tlme
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

that Admirsl Kimmel hdd taken over but after Admiral Kimmel
| had asked me to become his Chief of Staff,

. Mr, Gearhart: Those were conferences after “dmiral

Kimmel had learned that he was to take over?

Admiral émlth: Yes, 8lr,

Mr. Gearhart: As Fleet Chief of Staff you were present
at all staff meetings?

Admiral Smith: All of the important ones, yes, 81ir,
where the Commander-in-Chilef was present,

Mr. Gearhart: I will ask you if there were any disous-
sions at the staff meetings you attended from the beginning
h down until the fateful day of the Japanese problem inscfar
h as. hostilitles with the United States was concerned?

i - Admiral Smith: Well, there were many dlscussions along
Il that line, yes, sir.
Mr. Gearhart: And in those disocusslons members of the

ataff would endeavor to put themselves in the position of the

iJapanoao and try to think as the Jap would 1n order to be
| able to think through the answers to the questions that might

hbe in the Japanese mind¥

Admpiral Smith: Yes, sir,
Mr. Gearhart: In those discussicns that preceded the

catastrophe of December 7th did anybody in any of those staff

lmeetings raise the question of the necesilty for Japan's

f
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Witness Swmith Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

immobilization of our Fleet?

Admiral Smith: Not that I recall, no, sir,

Mr, Gearhart: Well, everyone knew that Japan was inter-
ested in the Soutﬁmest Paoifio?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir,

Mr. Gearhart: Everyone expeoted that thelr ultimate
objective was to conquer and to consolidate their oonquests
in that areaf?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, but also it must be rememwbered

| that the Japanese undoubtedly knew that ocur Fleet could not

leave Pearl Harbor to interfere with theilr movement to the
Southwest. We d4id not have the auxlllarles to do 1t. 1 be~-
lieve Admiral Kimmel testifled that we had 1l ollers, only 4
of which ocould fuel at sea, whereas I know from experilence
| this summer as Commander Surface Foroes, Pacilfic, that for

operations that we were carrying out in the Far East we had

?1 modern oilers with the Fleet that could fuel at sea and
467 commercial tankers on the pipe line and the same was true

of food and ammunition. We did not have these things out

there in the Pacific Ocean or in the Atlantic which could have
supported a movement so far west as the Phllippines.
Mr. Gearhart: Why are you so sure or were you sp sure

at that time that the Japanese knew that we were that short

| of auxiliary ships?

f
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Witness Smith Questicns by: Mr. Gearhart

2 Admiral Smith: WYell, we were very positive that they

3 were watching our every move. All they had to do is stand

4 on the hills surrounding Pearl Harbor and they could see whit
5 we had,

8 Mr. Gearhart: Well, Af they were sure of that and sure
7 of our lack of ocapaocity to go to the aid of the Philippines

8 and interfere with their operations in the South Pacifioc why
1] | did they take this great chance and come to the Hawallan

10 Islands to immobilize the American Fleet?

(' Admiral Smith: I do not know., That 1s where they took
[ us by surprise.

13 | Mr., Gearhart: Well, 4f they knew that we lacked the

14 auxiliary ships and supplyAhips so necessary and the other ne-

D G "NOLDNIHBYM "INYd ¥ CHYM

13 || cessary equipment to go to the ald of the Philippines their
18 l coming to Hawall was an unnecessary action and one which would

17 result in ne benefit to them whatsoever, 1sn't that ocorreoct?

18 Admiral Smithi I belleve that is the way 1t turned out,
19 ‘ sir.
20 Mr. Gearhart: Well, in view of the fact that they came

e a re you willing to say that in your opinion that they knew

83 that we could not go to the ald of MacArthur had we desired to
23 do soT?

24

w

Admiral Smith: It would apvear from the results that

28 || they did not but I do not know why they could not have known,




186

D ' "NOLDNIHEYM "INYd ¥ QNVYM

10

td

12

13

14

i3

17

18

19

20

&1

23

a4

9501

Witness Smith Questions hy: Mr., Gearhart

I would have thought that if in an attack on Pesrl Harber

their idea would have been to blast out the o1l tunks and the

| mashine shope, then we would have been helpless.for a very

long time.

Mr. Gearhart: But in coming to the Islands to attaok
| our Fleet in Pearl Harbor they risked a good proportion or
segment of theilr own fleet, did they not?

Admiral Smith: Very much so, yes, sir.

Mr. Gearhart: And since there was no purpose in their
mind to serve by immobilizing our Fleet doesn't it seem absurd
that they shouldhave come at all?
| Admiral Smith: It does, but long before Pearl Harbor,
| 8lr, we often sald 1t was lmpossible to read the Oriental
| mind, what they might do.

Mr. Gearhart: Well, now, supposing cur Fleet had been

taeken to the Pacific Coast do you think they would have still

risked this large armada of theirs in going to the Pacifio

" E—

Coast to lmmoblllize the Fleet which could not be, according

to your testimony, any source of danger to them?

Admiral Smith: I have been interested here in some of

the naval strategy I have heard from officers who are not
naval strateglsts and I do not olaim to be one by any means,

but 1t 18 my opinion had the Fleet been on the Pa Afic Coast

|the Japanese would not have &fittacked i1t in the menner of the
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

attack on Pearl Harbor,.

It 18 ridiculous to believe that a lurge force such as
the Japs had could approach San Pedro without being detected
because that part of the ocean 1s pretty well filled with
merchant ships. They would have been detected by someone.

Then there was the qQuestion they would probably have
had to fuel three times on the way over and the same on the
way back, They would not have dared, in my opinlon, to ap=
proach the West Cogst of the United States.

I have even heard testimony that they might have attacked

at Panama or anywhere, I suppose that includes New York, I

| do not know, but I do not belleve that any intelligent enemy

would attack the West Coast and leave Hawall as a plaoce from
which we oould hit it on 1ts way bank, because 1t 18 a simple
matter to fly bombers from the United States to the flelds on
Hawall,

Yhat Ibelleve the Jagps would have done had our Fleet been
on the coast 18 that they would have taken Oahu or one of
thé other 1slands of the Pacific in an amphibious operation
and 1t 1s my opinlon that they could have done 1t.

Mr, Gearhart: It i1s your opinlon that they could what?

Admiral Smith: That they could have done it.

Mr, Gearhart: That they could have made a landing on

Qahu if our Fleet had bsen on the Pacifio Coast?




. ey gk a0 o - ' - ; — "
’ . -1 : : .

= ] - - o e T g N e g - - - - T aa——

l:'-_m-ﬂl——_- — T I T T T — -“‘"-"'-'—-“

¥ i } L s
-l " o™ - j -

188 9503
: Witness Smith Questions h’: Mr. G.mrt
2 Admiral Smith: I would say that from what we know now

3 | of amphibious operations certainly we ocould have done it to

4 ||other 1slands., Maul, Hawall, were not proteoted at all. They

5 ||oould have taken one of those 1lelands without any 4difficulty
e |(|and from there attack Pearl Harbor,

- i I do not believe that they would have risked their fleet
g || to the Panific Coast of the Unlited States without first

o ||knocking out Pearl Harbor.

10 Mr. Gearhart: Anyway, the --

it Admiral Spith: I am an amateur .8tratéglist like the rest

t2 !|of them. I am Just giving my opinions,

13 Mr. Gearhart: Well, I know you haven't got your ruler

t4 {|and your rocking ohair there but I am willing to concede that

2 ‘G "NOLDNIHavYM "“1?; ¥ GQHVYM

(3 ||you are a naval strategist because I don'‘t think you ocould

16 {|live for so many years in that sort of atmosphere and in con-

l
1v |({stant touch with people who do know t hat without being one

18 ||yourself, but anyway 1t 18 plain to you as one who is not a
19 ||strateglst that the hazards to the Japanese fleet and to the

20 ||Japanese as such would have been greatly increased if they had

24 | attempted to negotliate an addlitirnal two thousand miles to

23 the Pacific Coast?

23 Admiral Smith: Yes, sir,

24 Mr. Gearhart: And the reasons for it are that they would

26 ';have been compelded to cross many a shipping lane which would

I




189 Witness Smith Questions by: Mr, Gearhart

n be in use at that time even though one was antioipated?

3 Adniral Smith: Yes.
4 Mr. Gearhart: Ajl right, You said no intelligent enemy
5 would 4o a thAing of that kind, You have already stripped the

i) enemy of intellience in saying that their expedition to

7 Hawall was & useless one,

8 Admiral Smith: I would say even the Japanese would not
? ||have attempted that, in my opinlon,
g 10 Mr., Gearhart: So you say this whole Pacific operation
g 11 || was one that was devoid of intelligence, not only the ques-
E 12 !| ticn of intelligence work. I mean intelligence in the oon-
g 13 | templation of«that whloh existe under the canopy known as
; 4 | the skull, Is that correoct?
: 15 Admiral Smith: I think so, yes.
16 | Mr., Gearhart: Now, in view of the faot that the Japan-
7 ese were not prepared for that landing, were not prepared for
18 lany landing operations, brought no transports with their
10 i armada, 1t would seem that they had but one objeoctive and
20 || that was to lmmoblllze our Fleet.
. 21 | Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, there 1s no queation about it.
23 Mr. Gearhart: And in view of the fact that you say they

23 | knew or must have known or must be held to have known that

24 we had no auxiliary ships,whioch would make 1t impcssible for

.' !5;
- |

!
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our Fleet to be ready to interfere in any way with their




operations in their advance in the Southwest Pacific -~ I am

asking you for your hind thought -« why 4id they do all these
shings?

Admiral Smith: We had for years had a plan of what we
would do in the Paolfilo in case of war with Japan and it had
been studied at the War College for years., It was steam
roller taotics, but we departed from that plan in this war.

810

ol 9505
Witness Smith Questions hy: Mr. Gearhart
l I do not know but I think it possible that the Japanese had

i1t || that once a plan 18 made they rarely depart from it.

12 It may be they carried that plan too long. I mean if

t3> || they had had a plan years ago to do that, to immobilize our

t4 || Fleet, they naturally would not suppose that our Fleet could

2 A 'NOLDNIHEBYM "MN.ivd ¥ QuUYM

10 || had a similar plan for years and they have shown in this war
(s

move to the westward that far., I think that it was the great-

16 || est mistake they ever made to have hit Pearl Harbor as they

18 || mobilize our heavy ships,

10 Mr, Gearhart: Now, have you learned elther prior to
20 || Pearl Harbor or since Pearl Harbor anything whioh weould lead
you to belleve that they possessed this WPL No. 467 '
1adm1ra1 Smith: Ne, sir, I do ﬁot believe they had, I
23 have not heard anything to that effeot.
24 Mr. Gearhart: Then in ocoming to the Hawail att:zck you

<3

17 did but it is without question that the purpose was to im-
do not know that they knew about our intentions with respect
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Witness Smith | Questions by: Mr. Yearhart

to the Marshalls?

Admiral Smith: No, I do not; no, sir,

Mr. Gearhart:! The fuct that they came when there was
80 1ittle reason behind their coming, does 1t not suggest to
your mind that possibly they had some idea of WPL-46 and
wanted to prevent ys from going into the Marshalls and inTer-
fering with their installatlons in that neilghborhood?

Admiral Smith: It does look that way, yes, sir, Now,
it ‘maJ be posslble that such information 1is pow avallable in
the Navy Department, A great deal of intelligence has been
gathered after the war I understand. That 18 a very inter-
esting subjeoct and it mmy be true; I don't know,

Mr. Gearhart: Now, 4id you have dlscussions in the staff
meetings p rlor to Pearl Harbor about these same things that
I have boon{iﬁterrogating you about these last few minutea?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, we had them very r’requontlyn

Mr. Gearhart: Was there an assumptlon upon the part of
those who partlclipated in those staff conferences that the
Japanese were too intelligent to have undertaken such an
operation against Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Mr. Gearhart: Do you think that any ssnse of security
was developed or grew from that oonvieticrn among the members

of the staff?




1812

10
it
i3
13

14

D QG "NOLONIHSYM "INYd ¥ GMVYM

{3
16
17
18
19

20
» -

23
24

an

i
!

‘....-.........-;.-lF-lll-lllIl-l!llllIIlllII-llI-llIllIlI-lllllllllllllllllllllII

= T =

- = ;"h-
- - [

9507

Witness Smith Questiona by: Mr., Gearhart

Admiral Smith: It is possible, I do not knhow.

Mr, Gearhart: Well, drawlng upon your oplnlcen, because
you were there and yocu took part in those conferences, I will
ask you do you think that the Navy air foroe would have been
l used in long distance patrols if they did not have that oon-
victiern and that bellief that the Japanese were too intelli-
gent to have embarked upon so dangerous an enterprise and so
foolhardy an enterpriese in the light of the lack of profit
to result from an unsuccessful attack? Dopes that aoccount for
the lack of patrols and lack of plans for the protection of
the 1sland agalnst such an attack?

Admiral Smith: I wo:ld say no, 8ir. I belleve that the
lack of patrols was not only due to the small number of planes
we had and the offensive operations that were planned, where
it was stated maximum operations out of Wake would take a
| minimum of two patrol squadrons to be.held at Cahu, -~ I be-

|
Ilieve the greatest influence was our intelligence as to the

position of the Japanese fleet, the f act that we knew they

were on the way south, had been seen going south, and although
it 18 true we did not know the position of the oarriers, the
last intelligence information that we had and I believe that
tho'intelligenoe lssued 1n the blilweekly bulletin by ONI on

'l December showed that the main carrler strength wae in

b
‘Japanera yetera

]

}
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; Witneass Smith . Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

o I It has been testified here that planes oould have been

3 sent out there and that the crews would have broken down in a

4 few weeks and the planes would have broken down also. When

l the tlme came that there was an indization of any such pos-
o sible movement toward Hawall, then it would have been time to
7 put the planes out to their maximum at the risk of woaring'
8 them out entirely, but we had no aﬁBh intelligence and d4id
0 not expect 1t. Everyone kept talking about the Philippines,
10 Guam and the Kra Peninsula; they never got east of that.

11 I don't know what else I can add to that, sir.

12 Mr. Gearhart; Well, let us pass the whole subject.

A —— - e — .

13 Now, in some of the testimony that has been taken in the

14 courge of this investigatlon it has appeared that there was a

D' 'NOLDNIHOYM "INYd & ONYM

15 radlo silence order which was made shortly before Pearl Hare

16 bor, Do you know anything about that?

7| Admiral Smith: On the part of whom, sir?

18 ‘ Mr. Gearhart: I zot the lmpression it was made by the
19 1 Commander-in-Chlef of the Fleet restriocting the use of radio

20 || by ships at sea. Is that not correct?

. 21 Adumiral Smith: That had been an order in effect for a
gz || very long time. Indivlidual ships were not allowed to use
23 thelr radio. If a message was absolutely necessary 1t would

24 | be sent out by one of the task force commanders perhaps.

|

25 ;.They evamnyent 35 far -= wall, I wouldn't be 40 sure of that
1
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Witness Smith Cuestions by: Mr. Gearhart

because I get events just before Pearl Harbor and just after
mixed, but it was the practice when it was necessary to send

a message eilther to fly planes inshore and send it over a shore
station or if too fur at sea to send a destroyer on the flank
£ifty to a hundred miles and have him broadcast the heusago

from there so that no one could out the Fleet 1in,

Mr, Gearhart: So that the position of the ships or the
group of ships might not be disoclosedt?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, and when the move of taking
ehlps was made from the Pgoific to the Atlantio in May 1941 |
they observed radio silence all the way and arrived at Panama
with thelr names painted out and were supposed to have gone

through ae a complete surprise. Those ships had nc radio

| whatever ail the way.

Mr. Gearhart: Yere any changes tightening or broadening
the radio restrioction made within a few weeks before Pearl
Harbor?

Admiral Smith: No, sir. That had been going on for, =
well, almost from the time that hdmiral-&immol took over,
possibly before.

Mr, Gearhart: We have had the log of the USS Bolse be-
fore us and 1t discloses that on the 27th and 28th of Novemher

of 1941 that ship encountered enemy ships in Guyam waters to

! whom thaw gignsled bhut thair signals wers not rsturned and

1'.....-l.IIIIlIIIII—Il-IIIIIIIIFIIIIIIlIIIIIllIIlII!lIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII-'
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e Witness Smith Q uestions by: Mr, Gearhart
q |
! ( 3 then the Boieo turned out of 1ts course.
[ | 3 | Admiral Spith: I belleve she was on the way from Pearl
?-i 4 Harbor to Manila escorting a transpert or something. S8he was
E - 5 | away from the Fleet,
6 | Mr. Gearhart: Information has reached me that an argu-
7 ment énsued between the Captain of the ship and the ochief
8 Exeoutive Officer as to whether or not radlo sllence should
8 be broken to transmit that information to Amerlcan naval
s 10 sauthorities in higher authority but that under the letter of
b g il the regulation that it was determined not to send that infor-
. E 12 mation, You did not receive any radios as Chlef of Staff,
’g 2 || 414 you?
g 14 Admiral rSmith: No, silr.
z 13 Mr. Gearhart: Or in general with respect to the presence
18 in Ameriocan waters around Guam that there was enemy oraft?
17 Admiral Smith: No, sir. I heard that rumor long after
18 ltho war. I never heard it at the time. I wo:ld say that 1t
19 ; ie possible. I know of one transport that went out and she
20 || carried radar to be delivered to our submarines in the Phil-
jj 2t ippines and the commanding off loer told me that hls orders

g2 ||from the Navy Department were to destroy the ship if she were

23 overhauled by Japanese forces because conditions werse tight,

24 (Ibut it 18 possiible the Boise was sacorting that ship, 1n

d
28 ! whioh op3n e
|

w

meel A }1--

e e 8 R

ve begon very reluctant to use radio under
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any oonditions.

you conoeive it to have been your duty if you had been Captain

Mr, Geaﬁhart:' Wouldn't it have been the duty, - wouldn't

of that shlp, to have changed your course and gotten beyond

the range of the Japanese patrols or warships of whatever

type they were and to advise your Commander-in-Chief of their

presence in Amerlocan waters?

Admiral Spith: I would not have avolded them unless lee

was too big, but I would have found some way, I bolievé,‘to

inform the Commander-in-Chlef and hls best method of doing

that was to, if withln perhaps three hundred miles of Guam,

to have flown one of hls planes to shore and sent the message

from there.

Mr. Gearhart: But that was not done either?

Admiral Smith; Sirt

Mr. Gearhart: You as Chilef of Staff saw no message?
Admiral Smith: No, sir.,

Mr, Gearhart: Or received a messaze to that €fect?

Admiral Spith: None whatever, sir. That would have

been the Captaln's resprnsiblility, what he did by hils action,

but I know of no such messages.

Mr. Gdarhart: 1If you received information at that time,

You having Just received the so-called war warning message ,

e . - e — . —

1that the Jepanens were prowling American waters in tha noighbor-

Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

¢
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Witness Smith Questiona by: Mr. Gearhart
hood of Guam, would that have made any difference in your

attitude towards the kind of a defense that should have been

invoked at Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Smith: Well, we had been told that Guam was one
of the probable places to come under attack and 1t could not
be defended. I don't know what effeot that might have had on
-ua but it seems to me that 1t would have confirmed the in-
formation that they were goling to hit Guam and possibly the
Philippines, We knew they were on the move to the southward.

Mr. Gearhart: ButAn all messages received they spocke of
an attack upon Guam and an attack on Borneo as merely the out-
eilde possibilities, 4id they not? i
Admiral Smith: Yes, sir. One message 8ald "in any di-
rection, inoluding Guam and the Philippines."

Mr., Gearhart: Yes. And you 1ntorprotod-that, didn't you,

as meaning the outside 1limlte ==

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, I did.

| Mr, Gearhart: (Continuing) -- of the Japanege operations?

Admiral Spith: I 414, yes, sir,

Mr, Gearhart: Well, would the knowledge that the Japan-

_— - A e, -

ese warships were prowling Guam waters have made any differ-

ence in your orderse or actlvities if you had been informed of

it7

>

l Admirel Sxpiths It depends upen

- - e — =

thie nature of the prowl.
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- If they were light foroces, pot concentrated, they might have

2 been merely socouting their flank to make certain that we did

+ | not put something over there. '

5 Mr, Gearhart: Well, all right. If you had received air

6 messages that the USS Wright on the 6th of December had sighted
y planes that they could not identify as bearing American in-

s |l signia, unidentified planes, 1f you had received a radio in-

0 dication to that effeot, ¥hat would you have done?

10 Admiral Smith: That would depend, of ocourse, upon the

it poslition of the USS Wright, I don't know where she wae at

12 that time, sir,
|

0 Mr. Gearhart: According to the testimony she was then

14 three or four hundred miles off Hawail.

D ‘G '"NOLDNIHBYM "INYd W OMYM

(3 Admiral Smith: I never received any such report.

168 Mr, Gearhart: She wae returning with Admiral Halsey's

17 contingent.

18 Admiral Spith: I don't remember that rumor. We had

{
I

10 || another one that went out that Admiral Halsey's planes had
F
20 || 81ghted two planes that they could not identify but when that

23 Mr. Gearhart: But thlses one I am asking you about 1is

was run down 1t proved to be incorreoct. I don't remember--

23 not rumor, It 18 fast, These unlidentified planes were fly-

24 || Ing in Amerlcan watére surrounding Hawall just preceding the

26 | attack on Heweid. Now, d1d vou reoeive any radio mesesges
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from th? USS Wright «-
Admiral Spith: No, sir,
Mr. Gearhart: (Continuing) -- that they had seen this?
Admiral Smith: No, sir, absolutely no. Hgd we received--
''r, Gearhart: You have been informed that the log dis-
closes that fact, haven't you, since that time?

Admiral Smith: No, I never heard 1t until you Jjust told

me.

Mr. Gearhart: Well, we have the log before the committee
and I read 1t. Now, the presence of unidentified planes or an
unidentifiable plane would indicate that there was a oarrier
somewhere near, wouldn't 1it?

Admiral Spith: It ocould not indicate anything else, sir,

Mr, Gearhart: But because of Your order for radio sil-
ence no message was recelved by the Commander-in-Chief of the
Pacific Fleet of this susploious circumstance?

Admiral Smith: I would not say because of an order for
radlo silence. I would say 1t was beocause fhﬂ Captain of the
ship had'verw poor Jjudsment. Anyorder of that nature should
be broken in an emergency. I am astounded, if such a thing
had happened, why he di1d not report it because the Wright, as

I recull now, was plyling between Pearl Harbor and Midway, vos-

| 8ibly Wake. He was in our waters,

Mr, Gearhart: Well, 1% has been disolnsed that ths ship
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was part of the dotaohmonm‘whloh.Adniral Halsey was the oom-
mander of and had been recently delivering planes to one of
the far western islands of the United States.

Admiral Smith: It could not have been & part of Admiral
Halsey's forces beczuse the Wright 1s not fast enough te go
with that force.

Mr. Gearhart: Well, i1t has been identified by naval
experts to have been within three or four hundred miles of
Hawail.

Admiral Smith: It 1s all new to me, s8ir,

Mr. Gearhart: What?

Admiral Spith: It 18 all new to me. I never heard of 1it.

Mr, Gearhart: Then what would you have done if on the 6th

| day of December ' a message had been receive-d indioating that
thére were unidentified planes flylng within three or four

hundred miles of Hawaii?

Admiral Smith: I would have made every effort to loocate
her both by patrol planes and by the task foroces that was 1in
that area not teo fir away.

Mr. Gearhart: You would have p robably, even though you
had a few planes to keep at your command, you would have
inaugurated, would you not --

Admiral Smith: Stopped ewrything.

| Mr, Gegarhart: {(Continuing) s distance reconnaissgnce?
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Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, s topped everything and put all
effort on that one problem,

Senator Lucas: Will the Congressman yield so that I can
ask cne questicn?

Mr, Gearhart: I yield, Yyes.

Senator Lucas: ‘Yhat date was the Wright seen?

Mr, Gearhart: I understood it to be the 6th.

Senator Lucas: The day before the attaok?

Mr., Gearhart: The day before the attack.

Senatoer Lucas: ‘Thank you,

Mr. Murphy: The Wright is shown directly above the
islands there. The log is avallab le to the members of the
committee.

Mr, ’?-earﬁart: May I have the log of the Wright? It is
in my file but I do not know where to look for 1it.

Mr., Kaufman: I have already sent for it, Mr. Congress-

man, It will be up in a moment.

The Vice Chairman: Counsel has already sent for it. It
will be up in a moment. |

Mr, Kaufman: I have already sent for the log of the
Wright and it will be up here in a moment, sir,

Mr. Gearhart: Now, while we are waiting for the log,

and I won't walt very long for it because we can return to it

| later, « 4id you during all of the time that vou ware asting

|
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2 a8 Chief of Staff see any reports of any shootlné or firing

3 || between American and Japanese ships?

4 Admi?al Smith: None whatever, no, sir,

8 Mr. Gearhart: Would you receive as the Chief of Staff
e for the Commander-in-Chief of the Pacific Fleet, would you

7 || receive any reports from the Aslatic Fleet in that regard if
8 there h 4 been any exchanze of fire between American and

e || Japanese shloa?

10 ~ Admirsgl Smith: Yes, sir, I am positive we should have
11 because “dmiral Hart kept us very well informed on what he

12 || Wa8 doing. The report would oertainly have gone to the Navy
13 Department and 1t would in any case have gone to us for in-

14 formation.

D A ‘NOLONIHEYM "INYd ¥ aQuYM

15 Mr. Gearhart: Then out at Pearl Harbor theres was no

16 || knowledge of any firing in the Paoifilc, so far as you know,

17 as between the Fleet of the United States and the fleet of

18 || Japan, or any of 1ts ships?

19 Admirsl Spith: No.'sir. There had not even been a depth
20 charge dropped.

21 Mr. Gearhart: I beg pardon?

22 Admiral Smith: Thére had not even been a depth charge

23 || dropved.

24 Mr. Gearhart: That 1s, until the morning of the 7th.

os | Admiral Spmith: Yes, sir,
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy

Mr, Murohy: Will the gentleman yield for a moment?

Mr, Gearhart: Yes.

Mr. Murphy: Admiral, on the shlp loocation charts which
we have been furnished I understand that the Navy have been
asked to give the list of the names, but on the 5th and the
6th of December there was some ship right up in the vicinity
from which that attack came. Now, I don't mean the exact
vioinlty, but to the north, and it went into Pemrl Harbor that
Sunday. It was not indicated what that ship was. Do we have
those ship loocation charts here?

“dmiral Smwith: I think it 1s very probable that that

was rone of our destroyers.

Mr. Murphy: 'ell, at any rate, on the 5th and 6th Sen-
ator Ferguson and I remember observing that there was a ship
to the north of Oahu and then it is gradually goinz in and
it is Miport on Sunduy.

I ask counsel if they will produce those ship charts?
Will you please produce those ship location charts? They are
photostats. Do you have the one I mean? There it is,

Senator Ferguson: It is a large map.

Mr, Gearhart: Well, I will read this to you:

"Saturday, December 6 - 20 to 24, Sighted vessel

bearing one polnt abaft port beam running without livhts

on coursge a-proxXximately 300 depgresa, true, distanaes four
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Gearhart

miles. Average steam, 200 lbs.,, average R,P.M., 86.1,"

Now, I willl ask you if that was sizhted, that ship was
sighted, - and that seems to be a ship on the seas, - on the
6th day of December and they could not identify 1t, what would
you have done under the silence of the radio order?

Adm1§a1 Smith: Told the ship who reported it to identify
1t or send a destroyer 1ivmedlately to investigate.

Mr. Gearhart: Now, here is a ship that had a one peint
bearling and was running without lizhts on a course approxi-
mately 300 degrees, true, whatever that means,

Admiral Smith: Of course, the first thing to have been
done in that case was to go to the Operaticns Off icer's
board and find whether we had a possible ship in that loocaticn
because a shlp then, a merchant ship wae not running without
lights at that time. If we could not identify her, then
send something out to ldentify her. Of course, I don't know
what shl) reporied this. .

Mr, Gearhart: Thle was reported by the Wright.

Admiral Bmith} Ch, that was reported by the Wright?

Mr, Gearhart: This wus :reoordod in the log of the
Wright as of the 6th day of December 1941 betweer the hours
of 20 and 24,

Noﬁ, if that had been reported to you as Chlef of Staff

to the Commander~in-Chief cof the Pacific Fleet would that have
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alerted the Flest?
Admiral Smith: I believe it would have, yes, #ir. The

probabllity, of course, was that that ship was a submarine

on the surface,
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Senator Lucas: Do I understand it was an unidentified
ship rather than an unidentified plane?

Mr. Gearhart: This particular item I read reveals
the presence of an unidentified surface ship. My interro-
zgatories grior to getting this long in my hand were in
reference to an unidentified aircraft.

Senator Lucas: Is the unidentified aircraft in the
log also?

ﬁr. Gearhart: I saw it the other time I had the
log in my hand., This is an additional item that I have
Mn across.

Senator Lucas: What kind of a ship was the Wright,
Admiral? It was an airplane tender, was it not?

Admirel Smith: The Wright was an airplane tender of

. the type like the transport Chateau Thierry. They were

built during the last war. The bow and stern looked like
they were good for 12 knots, and 14 if they were in good
shape.

Their speed is limited. She carried mostly parts for
seaplanes and I believe was on the way to Midway at that
time,

Mr. Murphy: Will the gentleman yield for a question?

Mr. Gearhart: I yileld.

Mr. Murphy: Admiral, I show you a Guide to Symbols,
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and then I show you a chart. What would be the technical

name of that chart, Admiral, do you know, in the Navy.

That would be a ship location chart, would it not?
Admiral Smith: No, I would not say so,

Mr. Murphy: What would you call that? I understand
1t 1s to keep a daily record of the ships of the United

States throughout the world.

Admiral Smith: Yes. That 1s a secret chart, and
would show the convoys. These are Great Circle routes,
of course,

Mr. Murphy: Now, with particular reference to the
Guilde to Symbols, I direct your attention to a ship which

1s to the north of Pearl Harbor., At what degree would you

say that was on the chart, this being 160 here (indicating)?

Admiral Smith: It would be about 155 west, I should
say.

Mr. Murphy: And how many degrees north?

Admiral Smith: I should say about three degrees
south.

Senator Ferguson: How many?

Admiral Smith: No, no. That 1s north latitude. I
think that 1s about 18 degrees north. It looks like it to
me. The chart should have in the margin somewhere the
latitudes, That is probably about 18 degrees north, I

should say.

9522
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Mr., Murphy: Will you resume your seat, Admiral,
and I will put this before you, '

I direct your attention to Exhibit 109, a secret
thart that is part of exhibit 109, and I direct parti-
cularly your attention to a ship to the north of Oahu,
and about 155 degrees west longitude, the location being
that of the ship in question on the 5th of December, 1941,
and I ask you if you will look to the Guide to Symbols and
tell us what kind of a ship that is. |

Admliral Smith: It would appear to be a patrol vessel,

Mr. Muréﬁy: Now, I show you another exhibit, a chart
in the same exhibit, the secret chart for December 6th.
With reference to the same patrol vessel, will you compare
for us the relative position of the vessel in question
on the 6th of December as compared to the 5th? Is there
anything that would indicate to you on the chart on the
6th as to the relative position of the vessal wvhich was
to the north of Oahu, 155 degrees longitude, on the 5th?

Admiral Smith: It seems to have disappeared from
this chart. I see nothing of the same ship or symbol,

Mr. Murphy: At any rate, Admiral, will you look at
the map on the wall, the Disposition of U. 8. Pacific

Fleet, 7 December, 1941, and the point from which the

Japanese force came, and compare it with the secret chart
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy'i
for December 5? What, in your Judgment, is the relative
position of the vessel in question to the north of Oahu,
as compared with the point from‘whioh the Jepanese force
came. I am referring to this one vight here (indicating).

Admiral Smith: Yes, I see 1t. Slightly to the east
of the path, through which the Japanese force went.

Mr, Murphy: Well, it is in the same general location,
is it not?

Admiral Smith: It is, yes.

Mr. Murphy: On the 5th or-December?

Admiral Smith: Yes. Ié you are trying to identify
that ship =--

Mr. Murphy: I would like very much to.

.Admiral Smith: If you are trylng to identify that
ship, I would say that since we now know that the Japanese
had special code messages arranged between the Consul
General and Tokyo about the meaning of a light in one or
two houses on the north short of Oahu, and the meaning of
two lights so far as the movement of our ships in and out
of Pearl Harbor is concerned, and of the hanging of sheets,
I believe, in the back yard during the day, that there
is no question whatever that Japanese submarines were opera-

ting to the north of Oshu, and they came to see those sig-

nals, end insteed of & patrcl boat this mey very well have
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been a submarine.

Mr. Murphy: That is an American ship, Admiral. These
are our reports of only American ships.

Admiral Smith: I did not know that.

Mr. Murphy: Yes, this is the American secret chart.

Admiral Smith: I cannot identify it, no sir.

Mr. Richardson: Just to interpolate a guestion right
there, Admiral, on fhe chart of the 6th, that vessel seems
not to be present. It seems to have moved out of that
area.

”

Admiral Smith: Yes.

Mr. Richardson: Can you identify where that vessel
is on the 6th on that chart? '

Admiral Swmith: No, sir, I cannot on the chart.
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Senator Lucas: I suggest the Congressman from Pennsyl-
Qania start all over agailn.

Mr. Murphy: I will ask the Naval Officer to furnish
us with an explanation of the ship and its name to the
north of Oahu on December 6th, the name of the ship, the
type of the ship, and where it went after i1t was 1n the
position of 155 degrees west, ;nd 18 degrees north.,

Senator Ferguson: We had asked for that before.

Mr. Murphy: I am renewing it. I would like to know

what happened to the ship thet was to the north of Cahu
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Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Murphy
on December 5, and where it went on the T7th.

I refer to the ship shown on the secret chart, glving
the location of the United States ships on December 5,
1941,

Admiral Smith: It would have been possible that
that ship was proceeding to or from Pearl Harbor, to
Pearl Harbor from the Ccast, and it is not very far from
the Grest Circle courss between San Ffanaisco and Oahu.

Mr. Murphy: Except, as I understend, Admiral,
there hed bsen some order or uniderstanding that all
ﬁeasela wvere to be out of the north and were to take some
other route, and we would ship everything down by the
Torres Strait. If it was a merchant vessel, I do not know
whether it would have shown on that secret chart, or not.

I believe it is only meant to show Unlted States
vessels as such. I mean patrol vessels, war vessels of
different types. So, at any rate, on the chart that is
before you that ship to the north of the Island of Oahu
appears to be in the same general direction, does it not,
as the point from which the Japanese came on December T?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, it does.




Shack (5) a
follows 0527
Hook Witness Smith Questions by: Mr. Gearhart
AL-1 . _
’ The Vice Chairman: Mr. Gearhart.
3 | Mr. Gearhart: I find, as far as I can find fromlthis
a log, that we sighted & surface ship. This is a verification
= of a letter which I have referred to from one of the lookouts
5 | on that ship who has written to the effect that that ship
T was ahailenged and it turned and fled, and they turned and
a ﬁ went the other wa§u
g It appears conclusively on the log of the shlp of
¢ 10 | December 6 that between the hours or 20 and 24 a ship was
% ‘1 irsighted by the U.S.5. WRIGHT.
; '3 !i Mr. Richardson: You cannot find any airships on there?
g (3 i} Mr. Gearhart: No. It wust be in one of the other logs.
% 13 ! It is not in this one. I read it into the record the last
i: .3 & time I had a log in my hand. There were two unidentified
13 | planes.
' T ;1 Mr. Murphy: One plane.
'8 ;: Mr. Gearhart: So if we are looking for precise reasons
‘o ﬁ for Pearl Harbsr we might fasten upon the fallure of The
»0 i saptain of the WRIGHT to have reported to you the unidentifiled
a1 ? vessel in Hawailan waters on the 6th day of December, 194172
. as i Admiral Smith: Yes, sir. There 1s no order 1ssued
a3 that is so hard and fast that in the interests of the securlity
24 E of the Fleel or Sf the country a captain with any Jjudgment
|

U cannot breek a radio silence when 1t 18 necessary.
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. The Vice Chairman
Mr. Gearhart: That 1s all.
: The Vice Chairman: Admiral, I would like to ask a
’ i question or two, if I way, on'some of the information you
: 1 gave use a short time ago.
; I believe you stated that, in your opinlon;, the Japs
j r could have captured Pearl Harbor or the adjacent lslends
i if the Fleet were not present there on December 7, 1041.
: % Adwiral Swmith: Yes, sir. By that I wean thelr objectlve
H wouid have been different. In fact, had they been accompanied
g :i ?*bw an amphibious force two days behind that strilke they could
é = : have accomplished the same thing. But I belleve thelr in-
; ¥ ! tentions would have been different.
% = 4 The Vice Chairman: Well, if that had happened, if
i { they had captured Pearl Harbor or the adjacent islands there,
n 13
;} i then we would have had to recapture Hawail in order to
| conduct a successful var against Japan, would not we?
; % Adniral Smith: Yes, sir.
- %% The Vice Chairman: I understood you to also state
i E that 1f they had destrojed our oil supplies and our shore
3 | installations there rather than attacking the Fleet, the
|
:; ;Esituation.would have been worse for this country than it
31 vas by what they did do.
:: %P Admiral Smith: Much vorse, yes, s8ir.
o | The Vice Chalrman: Are there any other questions?
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Senator_Ferguson: Yes, I have some.

The Vice Chairman:; Senator Ferguson of Michigan will
inquire.

Senator Ferguson: You think then that the oil at Pearl
Harbor was more important then our Fleet? 1Is that your
answer?

Admiral Smith: The type of ships that we had at that
time in Pearl Harbor, the battleships, had been so overloaded
vith additional gear in the past 20 years that they were
vell down in the water, their speed was so reduced that we
had a fleet speed of 15 knots. Our light forces were not
nurt very much, and it is the light forces and carriers
that carried on the war from that point until we got modern

nheavy ships that could travel at a fleet speed of, say, 28

- knots. I would say that the result of the disaster in Pearl

Harbor is, first, the unfortunate and terrible loss of life.

Senator Ferguson: No doubt about that.

Admiral Smith; The other, the material, the expense,
is not so important, because after those ships were raised
they were entirely modernized and rebullt along the lines
that they should have been rebuilt several years before.

Senator Ferguson: Thén this Fleet that we had at

Pearl Harbor, in your opinion, was of very little value as

far es a fighting force is concerned?
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Admiral Smith: Yes.

Senator Ferguson: It'did not make any difference where
it was, as far as the actual ships were concerned?

Admiral Smith: No, sir, except as a supporting force.
That is, if the Japs sent over surface ships in connection
with our move against the Marshalls -- after our strike in
the Marshalls we needed a supporting force beyond which the
carriers could go for protection, fueling, getting ready
for something else.

Senator Ferguson: Then it was a real value?

Admiral Smith: It was a real value in that respect,
yes, sir, but not as a Fleet that could have gone to éeek
out the Japanese FFleet.

Senator Ferguson: But we had more than that to do.
They had taken so many islands that there was a lot to do.
Would not it have been valuable to go with our landing
forces, with these lerge guns and all, and did not it delay
us because we did not have this fleet?

Admiral Smith: No, sir, it did not delay us, because
to recapture those islands, to take the islands away from
them we had to develop an éﬁormous amphibious force with
treined men, and we did not have them at that time. By

the time we got ready to move we had the ships necessary,

not only for support but for bombardment.
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Senator. Ferguson: Then, as I understand it, this
leet was of no value to defend Midway or to defend Guam
in case they would have struck thére, or struck first in

the Philippines?

Admiral Smith: We could have defended Midway, yes, sir,

but not Guam. Midway is not so far.

Senator Ferguson: Could not have defended Guam?

Admiral Smith: Not in my opinian, no, sir.

Senator Ferguson: It could not have gone down there
after they were trying to take Guam and been of any ald?

Admiral Smith: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Then you come back to this, that
this fleet was of very little value at the time, as far as
the blg ships were concerned?

'¥Admir31'8m1th: The heavy ships were of very little
value, yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: What about the airplanes that were
destroyed? What value were they? We were very low in
airplanes, were we not?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: How much did that interfere with
our action in the Pacific, the destruction of these planes?

Admiral Smith: I do not know how rapidly those planes

vere replaced bscause I left very shortly afterward, but it
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seems to me that we were very soon able to carry out a
proper reconnaissance and that Army and Navy planes must®
have been sent out there promptly. I do not know.

Senator Ferguson: Do you know whether or not we had
long-range reconn#issance there in July, or previous to July?

Admiral Smith: Only intermittently.

Senator Ferguson: Was there any order that ever was
issued by anyone stopping that reconnaissance sometime durilng
the summer?

Admiral Smith: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: You never heard of an order to stop 1u?

Admiral Smith: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Was it only for training purposes?

Admiral Smith: That I am unable to state. There ﬁére
times when the fleet exercises were carried out to the
north. Wherever we carried out the exercises the long-range
recannaissance planes took part.

Yes, you might say it was for tralning exercilses.

Senator Ferguson: It was tralning?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: I did not wish to go back to the
alert in the summer of 1940, I was not talking about that

reconnaissance at all. There was never any reconnalssance

for any other purpcses then training, &and There was no order

o — e ——— i — e —
et 5 i ..
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Witness Smith Questions by: Senator Ferguson
stopping 1ong-d1£tanoe reconnaissance?

Admiral Smith: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Any tim; during the year 1941°?

Admirai Smith: To the best of my knowledge there was
never any such order. |

Senator Ferguson: You would know about that?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: You were the Chief of Staff, were
you not?

Admiral Smith: Yes, sir, I would know.

Senator Ferguson: Will you give me the order of command,
as far as air was concerned, in Hawaii? How did Admiral
Bloch fit into the command?

Admiral Smith: I will try to explain the command
organization at that time. Admiral Bellinger, as he showed
yesterday, had several different titles. As Commander Task
Force 9, he worked with the Fleet, and had we advanced on
the Marshalls he would have done so as Commander of Task
Force 9, working directly under the Commander 1in Chief.

Now Admiral Bloch was the N;val'Base Defense Officer
and as such he was charged by this order, which 1s an

exhibit, the letter 2 0L-41, he was charged with the distant

reconnaissance. Two short excerpts from those orders are:

"T"he Commendent 14th Naval District is the Navel Base
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Nefense 0Officer. As such he shall", and one of his duties
i1s "exercise supervisory control over naval shore-based
aircraft, arranging through Commander Patrol Wing 2", that
1s Bellinger, "for coordination of the joint air effort
between the Army and Navy."

And later, "In case of an attack the Naval Base Defense
Officer shall launch air search for enemy ships.”

Mr. Murphy: Will the Senator yield at that point?

Senator Ferguson: Yes, I will yleld.

Mr. Murphy: If you look at page 398 of this hearing
you will find Admiral Bloch says all they were was & volunteer
fire department.

Senator Ferguson: Even though they were a volunteer
fire department I want to know who wa;s the head of the
voluntéer fire department.

Admiral Smith: I believe I am coming to that, sir.

Senator Ferguson: All right, go ahead.

Admiral Smith: So you see, had Admiral Bellinger had
all this information which he said yesterday he did not
have, he could not initiate a long-range search.

Senator Ferguson: Who could?

Admiral Smith: Admiral Bloch. But of course had that

information been in Bellinger’s hands he could have advised

Admiral Bloch of the search that should be carried out.

Now
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Admiral Bloch knew all of these things, but Admiral Bloch

had no planes. So as Naval Base Defense Officer he executed |
these orders.

Senator Ferguson: Without planes?

Admiral Smith: By borrowing planes from the Fleet,
by getting his planes from Admiral Kimmel, and he had the
planes that Admiral Kimmel could spare from his other

exercises or intentions.
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Senator Ferguson: Well, as Chief of Staff, did
you o;er find these men getting tangled up in these orders?

Admiral Smith: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: They were able to keep everything
in mind? -

Admiral Smith: Yes.

So that if a long range reconnaissance was thought
nscessayy --

Senator Ferguson: If you had really had to operate
this system, in antlicipation of an alr attack, wasn't it

[, very confusing?

Is it because they weren't doing anyﬁhing that they
didn't get tangled up in the red tape?

Admiral Smith: Well, they were doing things. Admiral
Bellinger was over there very often. The Commander in
Chief sent for him very often.

But if I may continue this involved command organiza-
tion --

Senator Ferguson: All right.

Admiral Smith: So Admiral Bloch had the responsibility
of éonducting this search. To do so, he had to call upon
the Commander in Chief for planes, and the Commander in

Chief could say yes, or no, of course.

On the other hand, if the Commancer in Chief thought
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e long-distance reconnaissance necessary, he would have
commanded Admiral Bloch, who was one of his task force
commonders, to carry on the search. So that after you
ana.lyzo it, the responsibility comes back to the Commander
in Chief and Admiral Kimmel in his testimony has accepted
that responsibility.

Senator Ferguson: All right.

Now, between Admiral Kimmel, thsre came next in line
Admiral Bloch,
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